
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, June 9, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Parks & Recreation Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Presentation on Best Starts for Kids Program (AJ McClure, Community Engagement Manager, 
Public Health-Seattle & King County/Department of Community and Human Services) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Adopt Resolution for 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program (Lindskov) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Arts Commission (Council) 
2. Discuss and Approve Arts Funding Program (Patterson) 
3. Approve Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian Project Construction Contract (Lindskov) 
4. Discuss and Approve Covington Community Park Maintenance Recommendation (Vondran) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 9, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 26, 2015 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the May 26, 2015 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 64



Unapproved Draft–May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 9, 2015 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, May 26, 
2015, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 
Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, 
Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto invited Councilmember Lanza to open the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  May 6, 2015 City Council Special Meeting for Listening Session at Kentlake 

High School Minutes; May 12, 2015 City Council Special Meeting for Joint Study 
Session with Covington Economic Development Council and Covington Chamber of 
Commerce Board Minutes; and May 12, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Electronic fund transfers in the Amount of $211,973.52, Dated May 1, 2015; 
Vouchers #32526-32591, including ACH payments and electronic funds transfers, in the 
Amount of $254,740.57, Dated May 15, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003751650-
1003751659 and #1003751667-#1003751667 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in 
the Amount of $176,327.91, Dated May 22, 2015. 
 

C-3. Appoint Voting Delegate for Association of Washington Cities Annual Business Meeting. 
 

 

2 of 64



Unapproved Draft–May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 9, 2015 
 

 2 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the May 14 meeting. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Laura Morrissey reported on the May 20 meeting. 
 
Arts Commission – Chair Lesli Cohan reported on the May 14 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Vice Chair Paul Max reported on the May 7 and May 21 meetings. 
 
Economic Development Council – The next meeting is scheduled for May 28. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  To Receive Testimony on Proposed 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
City Engineer Bob Lindskov gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Public Works Director Don Vondran and Community 
Development Director Richard Hart provided responses. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Discuss Police Officer Funding Options. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions.  Mr. Hendrickson, Police Chief Kevin 
Klason, and Mr. Hart provided responses.  City Attorney Sara Springer provided some 
clarification responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to request staff to provide more information 
on the utility tax option b and bring more alternatives to a future council meeting. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner indicated he would be unable to attend the Tri Cities meeting on May 
27 due to attending a landfill tour. 
 
Mayor Harto announced that Councilmember Mhoon was selected as Chair of Sound Cities 
Association Public Issues Committee next year. 

3 of 64



Unapproved Draft–May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 9, 2015 
 

 3 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Chele Dimmett, 26626 190th Avenue SE, Covington, spoke against a utility tax on sewer. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential litigation pursuant to (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 8:17 to 8:28 p.m. 
 
Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for five minutes 
after which no further action was anticipated. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

4 of 64



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32592-32651, including ACH payments and electronic funds 
transfers, in the Amount of $439,718.71, Dated May 29, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003801903-1003801914 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the Amount of 
$171,424.05, Dated June 5, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32592-32651, including ACH 
payments and electronic funds transfers, in the Amount of $439,718.71, 
Dated May 29, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003801903-
1003801914 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the Amount of 
$171,424.05, Dated June 5, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

 

5 of 64



6 of 64



7 of 64



8 of 64



9 of 64



10 of 64



11 of 64



12 of 64



13 of 64



14 of 64



15 of 64



16 of 64



17 of 64



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PROPOSED SIX-YEAR 2016 – 

2021 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The city is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program by July 1st for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of 
that Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of 
Transportation by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation 
(street) capital improvement program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington 
Six-Year TIP 2016 – 2021 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital 
Facilities Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
A Public Hearing for the proposed 2016 – 2021 Six-Year TIP was held before the City Council 
on May 26, 2015. No comments were received during the Public Hearing. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Direct Staff to modify the proposed 2016 – 2021 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the draft Six-Year TIP 2016 – 2021.  
The specific revenue source(s) for the city portion of the funds for each project is determined 
each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these projects.  
Possible sources are grants, appropriations and traffic impact fees. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution            Motion        Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass a Resolution adopting the City of Covington Six-Year (2016 - 
2021) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

18 of 64



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 2016-2021 SIX-
YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.77.010, the City of Covington (the “City”) is required 
to prepare and adopt a comprehensive transportation improvement program that addresses 
transportation improvements and needs for the ensuing six calendar years, which is commonly 
known as the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (“TIP); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.77.010, the City is also required to  revise and extend 
its Six-Year TIP annually to ensure that the City has a guide in carrying out a coordinated 
transportation program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 35.77 RCW requires that the Six-Year TIP must be consistent with 
the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is further required to conduct a public hearing prior to adopting any 
revisions or extensions of its Six-Year TIP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 26, 2015, the Covington City Council held a public hearing on the 
revised Six-Year TIP for the years 2016-2021, inclusive; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city council, being satisfied that the revised and extended Six-Year TIP 
for the years 2016-2021, inclusive, addresses the City’s needs for the ensuing six years and is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, hereby resolves as follows: 
 

1. The Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (2016-2021) for the City of 
Covington, as revised and extended for the ensuing calendar year, incorporated herein by 
its entirety and on file in the Covington City Clerk’s Office, is hereby adopted in its 
entirety, shall take effect on July 6, 2015, and previous plans shall be amended 
accordingly.  
 

2. A copy of the adopted Six-Year TIP for the years 2016-2021, together with a copy of this 
resolution, shall be filed with the Washington State Secretary of Transportation and the 
Washington State Transportation Improvement Board within thirty (30) days after the 
adoption of this resolution.  

ATTACHMENT 1

19 of 64



 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington, in open and regular 
session this 9th day of June, 2015. 
 

_____________________________________ 
                  MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

20 of 64



EXHIBIT A

21 of 64



ATTACHMENT 1

22 of 64



23 of 64



SR 18

SE 272ND ST

SE 256TH ST

RAMP

18
0T

H A
VE

 SE

16
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE WAX RD

SE 240TH ST

15
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 261ST ST

20
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 251ST ST

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

17
0T

H 
PL

 SE

160TH AVE SE

17
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 279TH PL

SE 267TH PL

SE 267TH ST

19
7T

H P
L S

E

17
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 262ND PL

19
9T

H 
PL

 SE

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

19
1S

T P
L S

E

194
TH

 AV
E S

E

20
0T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 270TH PL

SE 244TH ST

16
1S

T P
L S

E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 271ST ST

SE 265TH ST

SE 266TH PL

SE 244TH PL

SE 277TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

21
0T

H A
VE

 SE

17
2N

D 
PL

 SE
SE 262ND ST

17
0T

H A
VE

 SE

15
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 246TH ST

16
9T

H 
PL

 SE

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

17
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 259TH ST

SE 254TH PL

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

15
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 269TH ST

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

18
4T

H A
VE

 SE

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

16
1S

T A
VE

 SE

18
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y S
E

SE 270TH ST

SE 247TH ST

199
TH

 AV
E S

E

17
9T

H 
PL

 SE

17
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH ST

170TH WAY SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH PL

17
5T

H A
VE

 SE

159TH AVE SE

15
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 SE

17
1S

T P
L S

E

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

SE 249TH PL

17
1S

T A
VE

 SE

SE 253RD PL

188TH AVE SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 263RD PL

19
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

20
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 268TH PL

19
5T

H 
CT

 SE

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 271ST PL

15
0T

H 
PL

 SE

21
1T

H A
VE

 SE16
5T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 256TH PL

189TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

159TH PL SE

18
6T

H A
VE

 SE

20
8T

H A
VE

 SE

18
5T

H A
VE

 SE

16
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

18
4T

H 
PL

 SE

17
4T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 263RD ST

16
8T

H A
VE

 SE

21
2T

H A
VE

 SE

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 254TH ST

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT SE 261ST PL

19
0T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 252ND PL

20
6T

H A
VE

 SE

15
5T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 269TH PL

16
9T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH PL

SE 263RD CT

SE 280TH PL

SE 255TH PL

SE 251ST PL

183RD CT SE

SE 258TH PL

186TH CT SE

SE 242ND ST

SE 241ST ST

16
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND ST

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 264TH ST

16
0T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 269TH ST
SE 268TH ST

SE 260TH ST

RAMP

SE 265TH ST

16
8T

H A
VE

 SE

18
8T

H A
VE

 SE

RAMP

SE 258TH ST

SE 267TH PL

20
0T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 268TH ST

SE WAX RD

16
5T

H 
PL

 SE

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 260TH ST

SE 268TH ST

SE 266TH ST
SE 267TH PL

SE 255TH PL

17
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 262ND ST

SE 259TH ST

SE 263RD PL

SE 262ND PL

SE 263RD ST

SR 18
SE 266TH ST

SE 268TH ST

18
0T

H A
VE

 SE
SE 270TH ST

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

19
2N

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 252ND PL

SE 264TH ST
SE 263RD PL

16
8T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 266TH ST

19
1S

T P
L S

E

16
7T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 269TH ST

SE 267TH ST

SE 261ST ST

17
6T

H A
VE

 SE

20
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

Pipe
 La

ke

1124

112811271063

1149

1056

This map is intended for planning purposes only. 
Information was compiled from the most accurate 
sources generally available.

6-Year Transportation 
Improvement Projects 2016-2021

City of Covington

Created By: Shawn Buck 05/11/2015

.

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Public_Works
\Streets\TIP_Maps\6_Year_TIP\6_Year_TIP.mxd

1201

TC1

TC2

1086

ATTACHMENT 2

24 of 64



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
Capital Improvement Project Priorities 
 
 
 
1. CIP 1127 SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE  

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th 
Place SE.  This project will include the crossing of 
Jenkins Creek with a new structure for the stream, 
widening the street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes 
including curb and gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access 
control features, landscaping and provisions for u-
turns.   

 
 
 

 
 

2. CIP 1201 204th Avenue SE between SE 272nd Street SE and SE 259th Street 
 
The new roadway connection will provide overall 
benefits to the citywide street system by providing 
more options for vehicles traveling between SE 
272nd Street and SR 18.  This collector arterial will 
be widened to two 12-foot lanes, one 14-foot turn 
lane/median, and two 5-foot wide bike lanes.  Each 
side of the roadway will also include a curb, a 
gutter, a 5-foot landscape buffer, and a 5-foot 
sidewalk. 

 
 
 

3. CIP 1086 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th Street and vicinity SE 269th Street 
 
This project will install a 5’ separated walkway on 
the east side of 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th 
Street and just south of SE 269th Street.  This project 
will also install a drainage swale with underdrainage 
to convey and treat surface water. Once completed, 
this will provide a continuous separated 
walkway/sidewalk from Kentwood High School to 
the Covington Library.   
 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3

25 of 64



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
4. CIP 1128 SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd Avenue SE 

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion 
of SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 
192nd Avenue SE.  This project will widen the 
street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes including curb and 
gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access control features, 
landscaping and provisions for u-turns.   

 
 
 
 
 
5. CIP 1063 SE 272nd Street between 160th Avenue SE and 164th Avenue SE 

 
This project provides for design and future 
construction of additional turn lanes, 
channelization, and signal modifications.  
Widening SE 272nd Street will require 
modifications to the existing stream crossing at the 
intersection.  Project length is 800 feet.  Construct 
street section consistent with the existing SR 516 
section including illumination, landscaping, 10’ 
wide sidewalks with street trees in planting wells. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. CIP 1056 SE 256th Street between 172nd Avenue SE and 180th Avenue SE 

CIP 1149 180th Avenue SE between SE 256th Street and SE Wax Road (N)  
 
Portions of these two larger CIP projects (see map) 
are being combined to provide improvements 
adjacent to the new fire station at SE 256th Street 
and 180th Avenue SE.  The improvements will 
include widening the north side of SE 256th Street 
from 180th Avenue SE to 176th Avenue SE to match 
the section at 168th Avenue SE.  The frontage along 
180th Avenue SE will be widened from the 
intersection to Crestwood Elementary School. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

26 of 64



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
7. Town Center 1     SE 276th Street between 168th Place SE and SE Wax Road 
 

This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule 
of these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     
 
 

 
 
 
 
8. Town Center 2   171st Avenue SE (Main Street) between SE 275th Street and SE 276th Street 

 
This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule of 
these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9. CIP 1124 185th Place SE Extension - Wax Road/180th Ave SE to SE 272nd Street 

 
This project connects SE Wax Road/180th Avenue 
SE to SE 272nd Street via a new route and alignment 
designated as 185th Place SE.  The street section 
will consist of a 3-lane urban arterial standard with 
curb, gutter and 8’ sidewalks, landscaping strips, 
illumination and stormwater infrastructure.  The 
project will also include crossing Jenkins Creek.  
The actual route and alignment will be determined 
during design.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27 of 64



City of Covington 
2016-2021 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
 
COMPLETED 2015 

 
 
 

1. CIP 1029  Citywide Intersection Safety Project – 10 Locations  
This project is part of the WSDOT City Safety 
Program that is focused on intersection safety. The 
project will do safety improvements to 10 locations 
throughout the city. These improvements vary at 
each location but may include rechannelization, 
adding warning beacons and pavement markings; 
improving sight distance, and crosswalks; 
upgrading signs, sidewalks and ADA access points. 
The intersections are SE 272nd Street / 168th Place 
SE, SE 272nd Street / 172nd Place SE, 168th Place 
SE /169th Place SE, SE 270th Place / 174th Avenue 
SE, SE 256th Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 267th Street / 192nd Avenue SE, SE 261st 
Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 268th Street / 164th Avenue SE, SE Wax Road / 180th Ave 
SE and SE 256th / 170th Ave. SE. This project is fully funded and scheduled to be 
completed in 2014.   

 
 
2.  CIP 1014 Jenkins Creek Park between SE 267th Place and SE 268th Street 

 
This is a non-motorized transportation project that 
will construct a multiuse trail between SE 267th 
Place and SE 268th Street through Jenkins Creek 
Park.  This project will replace the pedestrian bridge 
that was washed out from a storm and once again 
connect neighborhoods to Jenkins Creek Elementary 
as well as provide ADA and bike access to and from 
the downtown core.     
 
 
 
 

28 of 64



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENTS TO OPENINGS ON THE ARTS COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
    Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
            
ATTACHMENTS:  Applications provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  Three position terms on the Arts Commission are due to expire on May 31, 
2015 (Position Nos. 5, 6, and 7).  Position No. 1 is currently vacant.  The City has received three 
applications from the three incumbents in these positions.  Extensive advertisement for the Arts 
Commission has been ongoing.  No other applications have been received. 
 
The Subcommittee for Arts Commission Interviews met on Tuesday, May 26, at 6:00 p.m. and 
interviewed Ed White (currently holds Position No. 5 and Vice Chair), Lesli Cohan (currently 
holds Position No. 7 and Chair), and Gini Cook (currently holds Position No. 6).  All three 
applicants continue to live inside of Covington city limits. 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 11-10. Membership, terms, residence requirements:  “The Arts 
Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City Council, two of which may be 
youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the start of their terms.  Up to two 
of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must reside within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or reside within the City 
limits.” 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to 

be considered for the May 31, 2015 expiring terms and vacant position. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill Position No. 5 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2018. 
 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill Position No. 6 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2018. 
 

29 of 64



Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill Position No. 7 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2018. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Recreation Manager 
 Parks & Recreation Director 
 City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 City Manager 

30 of 64



Regular Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 9, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER PUBLIC ART FUNDRAISING PLAN 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution 03-164 
2. Public Art Fundraising Plan (Including Exhibit 1) 

 
PREPARED BY:  Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill is for the city council to review and approve the Covington Arts 
Commission’s plan to support the city’s existing public art fund and to prioritize art projects for 
funding, such as the purchase of SeaHorse and additional public art projects in the future.   
 
Over the past three years the arts commission has worked under the council’s guidance to 
culminate the city’s art plan and make public art in the city a reality.  To this end, the arts 
commission is recommending a Public Art Fundraising Plan, included as Attachment 2 hereto, to 
lay the groundwork to begin promoting financial support of public art from local businesses and 
the public.  The proposed Public Art Fundraising Plan also includes the commission’s 
recommended Art Project Priority List. 
 
Background 
Art inspires and enriches the lives and broadens the perspectives of our society.  The arts 
commission pursues its public charge to develop a thriving arts environment, which is essential 
to an “Unmatched Quality of Life”, education, and the economic vitality for all of Covington.  
The Covington Arts Commission is committed to promoting the social, physical, emotional, 
aesthetic and economic benefits of a vibrant arts scene in our city. 
 
As part of their 2011 work program the arts commission focused on public art.  During their 
research on this topic they discovered that in 2003 the city council adopted resolution 03-164 
providing the newly formed arts commission and staff guidance on management of the city’s 
public art collection.  In passing resolution 03-164 the city council adopted the Covington Public 
Art Policy and Gift Acceptance Policy. 
 
At the 2013 joint meeting, the arts commission presented public art funding options and potential 
future art project possibilities as a basis for the discussion.  As part of their 2014 budget, council 
approved one-time funding in the amount of $4,000 to commission a public art project at the 
Covington Aquatic Center, including design and installation of an artwork anchoring system, and 
temporary artwork lease and installation. 
 
At the 2014 joint meeting, the commission presented council with their recommendation for the 
city’s first public art installation.  The council directed the commission to establish an art 

31 of 64



fundraising plan.  As part of their 2015 budget, council approved ongoing funding in the amount 
of $3,500 to support public art in the city.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Direct the arts commission to do further research and return at a later date with an 
 updated recommendation. 
2. Accept individual pieces of the public art fund raising plan and art project priority list. 
3. Reject the recommendations of the arts commission and proceed no further. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The fiscal impact of the arts commission’s recommendation will be positive with a goal to raise 
$12,000 for the initial public art project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ________________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to approve the Public Art Fundraising Plan and the Art Project Priority 
List, attached hereto and as recommended by the Arts Commission. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director, Parks and Recreation Director 

32 of 64



Attachment 1  

33 of 64



34 of 64



35 of 64



36 of 64



37 of 64



38 of 64



39 of 64



40 of 64



Attachment 2   
 

Public Art Fundraising Plan 

A. Promote ongoing funding and contributions to the Covington Public Art Fund 
B. Establish an Art Project Priority List (Exhibit #1) 
C. Use and maintain the arts web page on the city’s website to: 

 1.  Describe the Covington Public Art Fund 
 2.  Describe how to donate to the Covington Public Art Fund 
 3.  Provide a priority list of projects to be funded by the Covington Public Art Fund  
 4.  Describe the current art project 

D. Foster collaboration with large businesses and developers.  Focus on regional service providers 
and businesses for contributions - including but not limited to MultiCare, Valley Medical Center, 
and medical practitioners, Republic Services, Comcast and Puget Sound Energy.  Seek council 
members support for engaging with these companies and developers for partnership and support 
of Covington's public art program. 

E. Provide fundraising awareness for public art at community events and locations. 
F. Recognize significant donors through a tiered level contributions program.   
G. Encourage third-party fundraising efforts in support of site-specific art installations.   For 

example, in the case of the initial art project, the Covington Aquatic Center might offer special 
monthly swims, a name the SeaHorse contest, pictures with the SeaHorse, etc. 

 

41 of 64



Exhibit 1   
 

Art Project Priority List 

Art 
Fund 

Priority Covington Art Project Title 
Project 
Value 

1 SeaHorse - Art Purchase $12,000  
2 Public Art (future) - Art Purchase  TBD 
3 Gerry Crick Skate Park - Art Purchase (Supplement) $1,500  
4 Covington Aquatic Center Plaza - Community Art Tile Project TBD 
5 Revolving Art Exhibit - Outdoor Plinth Array for Art Contest  $1,000  
6 City Infrastructure Art Elements - Theme Development TBD 
7 Covington Community Park Roundabout - Art Purchase TBD 

 

 

42 of 64



    Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 9, 2015 

 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AWARDING THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 

JENKINS CREEK PARK PEDESTRIAN AND ADA IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT (CIP 1014) AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TASK 
ORDER FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SUPPORT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Gray & Osborne’s bid evaluation and award recommendation 
2. Independent Consultant Estimate for CIP 1014 Construction Management (CM) 
3. Amendment No 2  - Gray & Osborne CM Services 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:  
On May 8th, the City advertised a call for bids for the Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian and ADA 
Improvements Project.  Bid opening for the project occurred on May 27th.   
 
This pedestrian and ADA improvement project was originally programmed to be fully funded 
through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program of the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development. During early stages of design it was discovered that 
incorporating the scheduled and programmed Stormwater Management (SWM) project, 
“Timberlane Drainage Site LID #5”, would save time and money.  For example, having one 
wetland mitigation plan that addressed both projects and all impacts versus two projects that may 
have destroyed what was mitigated from the previous project. To address this, the project was 
broken into Schedule A and Schedule B knowing that portions could be identified as benefitting 
both the park trail and the SWM infrastructure.   
 
The Schedule A component would restore and enhance the existing trail system within Jenkins 
Creek Park, re-open the pedestrian connections to Jenkins Creek Elementary School, the Home 
Depot commercial area, and the downtown area.  The primary goals of this schedule were to 
remove the architectural barriers for seniors, handicapped, and students. 
 
The Schedule B component would replace aging pipe and provide a new discharge structure at 
the stormwater conveyance system’s outfall.  The primary goals of this schedule were to reduce 
erosion and channel incision by relocating the outfall. 
 
An Alternative Schedule A-1 component was designed and included in the bid process in case 
bids were favorable.  The hope was to develop a 250 LF paved trail between the east end of the 
Park and 186th Avenue SE across the Timberlane’s HOA easement.  This was to be awarded at 
the City’s discretion.  Because of high bids, it is staff’s recommendation that this portion be 
postponed.   

43 of 64



 
The call for bids specifically reserves the City of Covington the right to award the project to the 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder for Schedule A plus Schedule B.  The bids ranged from 
$602,066.89 to $775,453.85 for the sum of Schedules A and B. The low bid is approximately 33 
percent higher than the Engineer’s Estimate.  The majority of the differences in cost are within 
the Schedule A items.  These include mobilization, clearing, demolition, excavation, crushed 
rock, and asphalt.  Three of the four bids are within 10 percent of each other, so the City appears 
to have received a competitive bid. 
 

 
Bidder 

Schedules 
A + B 

             Engineer’s Estimate $453,859.30 
1.  WHH Nisqually Federal Services, LLC $602,006.89 
2.  CCT Construction, Inc. $606,692.50 
3.  R.W. Scott Construction Company $651,205.27 
4.  Westwater Construction Company $775,453.85 

 
The pre-bid meeting on May 20th may have given us insight into the higher than expected bids.  
Participants expressed concerns about the following: 

• Heavy vehicle access between Jenkins Creek and Spring Pond 
• Staging area for equipment and materials  
• Limited fish window that required an accelerated schedule 
• Bridge delivery 

 
In original estimates we leaned heavily on the CDBG grant covering the majority of costs, while 
our stormwater and parks maintenance programs reaped considerable gain. The original CDBG 
grant was intended to fund a minimum 5-foot wide pedestrian trail with two 1-foot wide gravel 
shoulders.  The City desired to widen the trail to a 10 foot wide paved trail with two 1-foot wide 
gravel shoulders and widen the bridges in order to make the trail accessible for vehicles. The 
footprint of the at grade trail improvements widened from 7 feet to 12 feet, or 42%, in order to 
allow for parks and stormwater vehicles to service the park.  In addition, the asphalt quantities 
increased by 50%, the Jenkins Creek Bridge widened by 58%, and the Spring Pond Bridge 
widened by 38% to accommodate these maintenance vehicles. 
 
Applying these percentages proportionately to determine the benefit to SWM, staff has 
determined that an additional $225,256 of SWM funding be added to Schedule A of the Jenkins 
Creek Park Pedestrian Project.  The total SWM allocation for Schedules A and B will be 
$319,863.  This accounts for a proportional construction share near 50%.  Staff believes this is 
equitable and remains in line with SWM maintenance needs.  Not only will the improvements 
allow for access to the newly installed SWM infrastructure but will allow access to maintain 
current critical areas as well as future SWM infrastructure. 
 
Although the bids are higher than the engineer’s estimate, taking into consideration the concerns 
expressed by the contractors along with the close bids, we recommend awarding the project to 
WHH Nisqually. 
  

44 of 64



ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Delay award until the June 30th council meeting.  Current schedule has us completing and 

closing the project on October 30th.  The King County Contract is scheduled to expire on 
November 15th.  Delaying the award would reduce the fish window even more and likely 
impact the contractor’s critical path.   

2. Reject all bids and re-advertise.  This would significantly delay the project and would most 
likely delay construction until next year.  Identifying staging areas may bring down total bid 
prices.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project is fully funded as part of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) in 
combination with the City’s Stormwater Management program.  The following breakdown will 
show how the completion of the project will most likely occur. 
 

Revenue: 
• CDBG Construction Funds $314,145 

Total Revenue $314,145 
 
SWM Funds: 

• Proportional SWM Funds Allocated for Schedule A $225,256 
• SWM Funds Allocated for Schedule B $94,607 
• SWM Funds Allocated for Consultant CM  $16,365 

  Total SWM Funds $336,228 
 
   Total Revenue $650,373 
 

Expenditures/Budget: 
• Construction Contract Costs Schedule A $507,400 
• Construction Contract Costs Schedule B  $94,607 
• Construction Management Consultant Costs (CDBG) $16,365 
• Construction Management Consultant Costs (SWM) $16,365 

Total Costs  $634,737 
 
 Remaining Budget (Contingency)  $15,636 

 
Therefore, funds are budgeted to cover the costs of the project.  The above estimates leave a 
balance of $15,636 that can be used for contingency.  Typically a 10% contingency cost is 
budgeted in order to cover unforeseen issues/costs associated with more complex and variable 
construction.  However, our intent is to remain diligent in our quantities and keep this project 
entirely funded through the CDBG grant and SWM program as budgeted above.   
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization for the City Manager to execute a task order with our 
on-call consultant, Gray & Osborne, for Construction Management (CM) for this project, not to 
exceed $32,730 (Attachment 3).  The costs for the CM have been included in the overall budget 
identified above. 
 

45 of 64



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance             Resolution       X     Motion           Other 
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to award the bid of the Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian and ADA 
Improvement Project to WHH Nisqually Federal Services, LLC in the 
amount of $602,006.89.  
 
Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a task order with the city’s 
on-call consultant, Gray & Osborne, for Construction Management not to 
exceed $32,730.  

 
REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 

46 of 64



ATTACHMENT 1

47 of 64



48 of 64



49 of 64



50 of 64



51 of 64



52 of 64



Independent Estimate For

Consulting Services

Direct Salary Cost (Composite) :

Agency

Project Title

Project No.File No.

DateEstimate Prepared By: (signature)

Manhours
Average

Rate Of Pay

Totals 242.5 297.00 11,628.00

Overhead Cost (including payroll additives)

Fixed Fee $

$

$

$

$

%

%

Sub-total

Grand Total

*ContingenciesContingencies %

Breakdown Of Work

* Use only on cost plus net fee type of payment

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

Travel and Per Diem

Reproduction Expenses

Computer Expense

Communication

Sampling and Testing

Outside Consultants

Other (Specify)

Total  $ 400.00

22,355.99192.26

15 1,744.20

36,128.19

5 1,806.41

37,934.60

150.00

250.00

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2.5

72.0

72.0

8.0

48.0

40.0

56.00

50.00

35.00

46.00

75.00

35.00

140.00

3,600.00

2,520.00

368.00

3,600.00

1,400.00

Estimated

Cost

Principal-in-Charge

Project Engineer

Civil Engineer

Structural Engineer

Survey Crew (2 person)

Survey Technician

DOT Form 140-012 EF
Revised 04/2007

June 2, 2015

City of Covington

Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian and ADA Improvements Construction Management

Reimbursable

ATTACHMENT 2

53 of 64



ATTACHMENT 3

54 of 64



55 of 64



56 of 64



57 of 64



 Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK MAINTENANCE 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Contract versus In-house Hours Comparison 
2. CCP Equipment Needs List 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:  
During the 2013 Budget process there were several options considered for providing the 
necessary maintenance for Covington Community Park (CCP).  Those options included full 
contract maintenance, full in-house maintenance, or a mixed service approach.  The council 
approved the budget with the mixed service approach, which included a budget of $104,000 for 
the contract portion and additional funding for operating (irrigation, field repair, etc.) costs and 
one-time equipment (4-wheel trail vehicle (Gator), trailer) costs.   
 
In the spring of 2013, we advertised to receive bids for the maintenance contract at CCP.  We 
received 6 bids and they were as follows: 
 

Canber Corps $58,139 Signature Landscape $121,566 
SMS Holdings $95,609 Total Landscape $161,130 
Brickman $113,188 Westgro $195,068 

 
On April 9, 2013, the city council awarded the Covington Community Park (CCP) Maintenance 
Agreement to the lowest, most qualified bidder, Canber Corps.  However, we were concerned 
with how low the Canber bid was in comparison to all the other bids.  Our concern was if we 
reduced our budget for the CCP maintenance contract from $104,000 to $60,000 (based on the 
Canber bid) and Canber could not maintain the level of service required or did not want to renew 
the contract we would have to rebid the contract and it would likely be around the $104,000.  
Therefore, we kept $100,000 in the budget to be conservative going forward.  
 
Initially the work from Canber was acceptable.  There were issues, but we attributed that to a 
new park and working out the details.  However, during the second year of the contract with 
Canber we noticed a significant decrease in the level of service that was being provided.  Some 
of the issues included fertilizing problems and overwatering that resulted in fungus in the athletic 
field, use of the wrong paint for striping the field that killed the grass, and not securing the gate 
at park closings.  Recently, we learned that Canber improperly winterized one of the irrigation 
zones and 17 heads were broken as well as a water pump that had to be repaired.  These types of 

58 of 64



issues have required our city maintenance staff to take on more responsibility such as striping, 
irrigation and closely monitoring fertilization and winterization.  Although these items were 
removed from the contract with Canber, city maintenance staff has had to spend more and more 
time coordinating and maintaining aspects of CCP maintenance.  This has caused us to 
reevaluate the contract with Canber and advertise a new request for bids.   
 
On April 16, 2015, we received two bids for the CCP maintenance.  The two bids were as 
follows:  
 

Brickman Group $130,923.82 – includes $32,850 for daily opening/closing of gate 
Westgro Corp. $123,238.20 – includes $31,755 for daily opening/closing of gate 

 
As mentioned at the April 28, 2015 council meeting, these bids are significantly higher than the 
original contract with Canber ($58,139), accordingly, staff wanted to evaluate other options and 
present a recommendation to the council to better address the maintenance of CCP.   
 
Attachment 1 shows a comparison of the hours that have been required to maintain CCP under 
contract (left of green bar) versus the hours that would be needed to bring maintenance in house 
(right of green bar).  Included in the total number of contract hours (1,396 hours) is the amount 
of staff time (351 hours) that was needed to do some of the maintenance and inspection of the 
contractor.  The estimated hours to bring the maintenance in-house (1,411 hours) are very similar 
to the amount of hours that were reported by the contractor.  The in-house analysis shows a 
possible breakdown between a current FTE (Jesse) and a new seasonal employee.  Although the 
spreadsheet only shows approximately 600 hours of additional seasonal help, the allocation of 
Jesse’s time at CCP (above current levels) needs to be compensated due to the reduction of 
worker hours available at other city park facilities.  Based on this analysis, staff feels that a 9-
month seasonal would be the only additional city staff that would be needed to cover the 600 
hours at CCP and to cover the remaining maintenance needs at the other city park facilities.   
 
The other component necessary to determine if the maintenance of CCP can be brought in-house 
is determining equipment needs.  Attachment 2 identifies the equipment startup needs for 
bringing CCP maintenance in-house.  The cost for the equipment is estimated at about $55,000.  
This will allow for a 72” Contour Rotary mower that would be used primarily for the athletic 
field. This type of mower will allow for versatility with the future expansion of our park 
facilities.  The walker mower will be used to mow the open space, grass trails, and be used at 
other city park facilities. 
 
By the end of June we expect to have spent $30,000 on the current contract with Canber.  The 
2015 budget has $100,000 allocated for the CCP park maintenance contract.  We estimate the 
cost to bring the CCP maintenance in-house in 2015 to be $73,388.  This includes: 

• Seasonal employee for approximately 5 months - $18,000 
• Equipment Costs - $55,388 

 
This equates to an estimated total of $103,388 being spent for 2015 on CCP maintenance which 
is an increase of only $3,388 from the budgeted amount, which could be absorbed by the overall 

59 of 64



parks maintenance budget. Staff feels that bringing the CCP maintenance in-house would raise 
the level of service and maintain a consistent city presence at the park.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Award a new maintenance contract to Westgro in the amount of $91,483.20.  The cost to open 
and close the gate has been removed ($31,755) since the city is in the process of installing an 
automatic gate.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
If maintenance is brought in-house, the estimated cost exceeds the CCP parks maintenance 
budget line item by only $3,388.  However, this includes one-time equipment costs that would 
not be reoccurring.  One additional consideration that needs to be evaluated for the 2016 budget 
is replacing a maintenance vehicle one year early, which would be used for parks maintenance.  
We do not anticipate exceeding the budgeted $100,000 for CCP maintenance in future years.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance            Resolutions       X     Motion         Other 
 

Option A: 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to reject all bids received for CCP maintenance and authorize 
city staff to prepare all necessary 2015 budget amendments to account for 
all required equipment and hiring costs associated with performing all 
Covington Community Park with city staff and resources.   
 
Option B: 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to award the Covington Community Park Maintenance contract 
to Westgro, as the lowest responsible bidder, in the amount of $91,483.20. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

60 of 64



City Staff 
Hours in CCP

Contract 
Bid Item # Description Unit

Expected 
Monthly 
Quantity 
(units) 

Total Contractor 
Labor Hours for 

2014

Average 
Hours/Month

Average 
Hours/Unit

City Staff Hours                  
(Currently 

Spent)

Total City Hours 
Needed

Full Time 
Staff (Jesse)

Seasonal 
Support (New 

Position)

Average 
Hours/Month

Average 
Hours/Unit

Athletic Field Turf
1 Mowing Each 5.67 161.00 13.42 2.37 0.00 124.24 93.18 31.06 10.35 1.83 Calculated using a 48" wide mower
2 Edging Each 2.33 57.00 4.75 2.04 0.00 21.12 15.84 5.28 1.76 0.75
3 Fertilizing Each 0.75 29.00 2.42 3.22 0.00 39.15 19.58 19.58 3.26 4.35
4 Herbicide Each 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.70 8.70 0.00 0.73 8.70
5 Pesticide/Rodent Control Each -- 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 Soccer Field Prep/Striping Each 2.67 168.00 14.00 5.25 159.00 192.00 96.00 96.00 16.00 6.00

Non Athletic Field Turf
7 Mowing Each 2.33 77.50 6.46 2.77 0.00 18.82 4.70 14.11 1.57 0.67
8 Fertilizing Each 0.17 4.00 0.33 2.00 0.00 8.00 4.00 4.00 0.67 4.00
9 Herbicide Each 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24.00 24.00 0.00 2.00 24.00

10 Pesticide/Rodent Control Each -- 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Grass Trail

11 Mowing Each 2.33 47.00 3.92 1.68 0.00 64.00 16.00 48.00 5.33 2.29
Shrubs, Trees, Planting Beds

12 Planter Bed Maintenance Each -- 87.00 7.25 0.00 0.00 256.07 128.04 128.04 21.34
13 Annual Bed Plantings (Flowers) Each 0.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.00 18.00 18.00 3.00 18.00

Hard and Soft Surfaces, Trails
14 Leaf and Tree Debris Removal Each 0.50 47.50 3.96 7.92 0.00 150.00 120.00 30.00 12.50 25.00
15 Pressure Washing Each 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.00 18.00 1.50 18.00
16 Blowing (Hard Surfaces/Trails) Each 5.00 164.50 13.71 2.74 0.00 106.08 84.86 21.22 8.84 1.77
17 Parking Lot Striping Each 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24.00 24.00 0.00 2.00 24.00

Other
18 Trash Cans Each 16.00 110.50 9.21 0.58 0.00 72.00 18.00 54.00 6.00 0.38
19 Graffiti Removal Each -- 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.80 4.80 0.40
20 Stormwater Pond Mowing/Weedeating Each 0.17 7.50 0.63 3.75 0.00 24.00 12.00 12.00 2.00 12.00 4 applications recommended by City

Irrigation
21 System Startup Each 0.08 4.00 0.33 4.00 0.00 4.00 2.00 2.00 0.33 4.00
22 Operation and Maintenance Each -- 17.50 1.46 0.00 0.00 30.00 18.00 12.00 2.50
23 Winterization Each 0.08 5.00 0.42 5.00 0.00 6.00 6.00 0.00 0.50 6.00

A-1 Gate Opening/Closing Each 30.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 City proposes to make the gate automatic

B-1 Wetland Maintenance Each 0.25 N/A 54.00 27.00 27.00 4.50 18.00
B-2 **Misc work at CCP (Inspections, Recreation, etc) Each 192.00 0.00 Not Needed if brought in house

Thatch Field (once/yr) Each 0.08 12.00 1.00 12.00 0.00 36.00 18.00 18.00 3.00 9.00 In-house includes higher frequency (2x)
Aerate Field (once/yr) Each 0.08 12.00 1.00 12.00 0.00 36.00 18.00 18.00 3.00 9.00 In-house includes higher frequency (4x)
Seeding Field (once/yr) Each 0.08 12.00 1.00 12.00 0.00 36.00 18.00 18.00 3.00 9.00 In-house includes higher frequency (4x)
Top Dress Field (once/yr) Each 0.08 22.00 1.83 22.00 0.00 18.00 9.00 9.00 1.50 4.50 In-house includes higher frequency (2x)

Totals: 1045 87.08 351 807.70 603.28 117.58
1,396 1,411

NOTES

Covington Community Park Maintenance

Estimated City Staff hours if brought in house

NOTE!!  Total hours only reflect time in the field. They do not account for vacations, sick time, holidays, meetings, training, etc.

Maintenance Items and Descriptions as Bid in Canber Contract

Bid Additive

Contractor Maintenance                           
(as reported by Canber) CCP Maintenance Staff Breakdown if brought in-house

Discretionary Work

2014 Year Total   (Contractor and City Hours)

Additional Work Items

ATTACHMENT 1

61 of 64



Equipment Amt Brand Model Price (Ea) Needed for start-up Comments
Backpack Blowers 2 Stihl BR 600 $449.95 $899.90
Pole Edger 1 Stihl FC-110 $449.95 $449.95
Hedge Trimmer 2 Stihl HS 56 $359.95 $719.90
Line Trimmers 2 Stihl FS-110 $368.95 $737.90
Chainsaw 2 Stihl MS 192 $223.95 $447.90
Mower 1 Toro 3500-D $32,000.00 $32,000.00 Contour Rotary (72")
Mower 1 Walker MT30i $15,000.00 $15,000.00 42 inch deck (MT23-$11,300; MT25i-$12,600; MD21d-$16,300)
Pole saw 1 Silky Hayauchi $280.95 $280.95 Telescoping 21 foot pole saw

Totals: $55,388.00 includes tax

CCP Equipment Needs List

ATTACHMENT 2

62 of 64



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  June 9, 2015 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 

Tuesday, June 23, 2015 Regular Meeting 
CANCELED Due to Lack of Quorum 

 
5:30 p.m. Tuesday, June 30, 2015 
Dinner with Japanese Delegation 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 30, 2015 Special Meeting 

(Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

63 of 64



 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, June 9, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A quorum of the Council will be present for dinner with the Japanese delegation at 5:30 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 27, 2015 Tri Cities Special Meeting; June 9, 2015 Special Meeting–Joint Study 

Session with Parks & Recreation Commission; and June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Citywide Safety Improvement Project Construction Contract (Lindskov) 
C-4. Approve Astound Broadband Franchise Agreement (Lyons) 
C-5. Accept Grant from Flood Control District (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Resolution Establishing Sister City Program  
2. Letter of Intent to Adopt Tatsuno, Japan as City of Covington’s Sister City (Council) 
3. Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year (Slate) 
4. Proclamation Recognizing Outgoing Police Chief Kevin Klason (Council) 

 
RECEPTION FOR POLICE CHIEF KEVIN KLASON 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

Draft 
as of 06/04/15 

 

64 of 64

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	06-09-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 9, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 06-09-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 05.26.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 06-09-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 06-9-15 6 Yr TIP 2016-2021 Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 RESOLUTION_Six-Year TIP 2016-2021
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 Exhibit A 6 Yr TIP 2016-2021 EXhibit A for Resolution
	20150528_163618.pdf
	Attachment 1 - Summary Spreadsheet
	Attachment 2 - Map
	Attachment 3 - Project Descriptions

	Item 1 06-09-2015 Appointments to Arts Commission
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet Agenda Item 2 - Public Art Fundraising-Blue Sheet-6-9-15
	Item 2 Attachment 1 - Resolution 03-164
	Item 2 Attachment 2 - Public Art Fundraising Plan
	Item 2 Attachment 2 Exhibit 1 - Art Project Priority List
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 06-09-15 Jenkins Creek Park Bridge Blue Sheet - Contract Award
	Item 3 Attachment 1 JCP Attachment 1 - Engineer's Rec to award
	Item 3 Attachment 2 JCP Attachment 2 - IndependentEstimateForConsultantServices
	Item 3 Attachment 3 JCP Attachment 3 - Amend. No 2 - CM Services
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 06-09-15 CCP Maintenance Recommendation
	Item 4 Attachment 1 CCP Maintenance Attachment 1
	Hours Comparison

	Item 4 Attachment 2 CCP Maintenance Attachment 2
	CCP Equipment Needs

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	06-30-2015 Special Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 9, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




